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3. Classification
Category Dwnership Status Present Use
—_ district —__ pubiic X occupied —— agricuiture —— Fmiuseum
¥ building{s) _X_ private - uncceupied —— commercial - park
— . Struciure — both ———wWork in progress — educational ___private residencs
— _ site Public Acguisiiion Accessible - entertainmant _X_ raligicus
—_. Object —_in process _¥__ yes: restrictad —— goverament —_ scientific
belng considered ~ yes: unrestricted industrial {ransportation
— 10 — military - othern:

4. Dwner of Properly
name Members of Grace Episcopal Church of Chillicothe, Missouri

421

straet & number

Eim Street

city, town Chillicothe —__ vicinity of state Missouri 64601
o &. 2 o e 3
5. Localion of Legal Deseripliion

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc.

Recorder of Deeds, !'ivingston Countv Courthouse

street & number

city, town Chillicoths state Missouri 54601
e B0 3 s 3 e e Lo P
8. Rapresamiation in EXisling Surveys
title 1. Missouri State. Hi._s__t_or-i zal Suryey has this property been determined elegibie? ____vyes _X no
date 1979 ____ flederai ¢ state ___ county ____jocai
‘ i Department of Matural Rescurces
depository ‘or survey qeCords p Box_178
city, town Jefiarson City statz Missouri 55102
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Y. Descrintion

]

Condition Check one Check one

. excellent —__deteriorated _._ unaliered __X original site
__X good e TUINS X altered . moved date
____fair —— unexposed

Describe the presant and original {if Xnown) shysical anpesrance

The Grace Episcopal Church Complex, Chillicothe, Missouri, is located two and one-hal?
blocks southeast of the business district in a neighborhood of moderately-sized single
family nomes. Wnite paint not only provides a consistency of 1ts own to blend the small
and Tnexpensive prefabricated wooden church of 1867-69 and its additions with surrounding
houses of slightly later pericds, but it aiso heightans the abstract appearance of the
cnurch's crisp, gabled forms which lack superfluous and costly ambellishment. Forgoing
pretense for a quiet, churchly feeling, the simple building testifies to the stick
cnaracter of many mid-western small town EIpiscopal churches built during the nineteent
century. Additicnally, Grace Episcopal evidances the Egiscopal Churci's strong
identification with the Anglican Church of fngland as illustratad by its patterning
after Early English Gothic churches, .

The churcn, which measures approximately 69 feet east-west by 22 feet north-south,
foilows rudimentary aisleless rectangular plans of Anglican parish churches of the
1820"'s to 1840's, consisting of naves and chancels undar separate roofs with sacristies
appendaged to the chancels. Rising to a height of 28 feet above a concrets clad stone
foundation, Grace Episcopal reaches eastward from a gabled roof vestibule on €1m Street
to a five bay nave {containing a choir in its easternmost bay) and beyond to a shallow
chancel {9 feet east-west by 11 feet north-south) and arn adjoining pent rcofed sacristy
to the south. A rectangular Toyer situated fo the norih of the choir{which was formerly
a library and later a gymnasium), links the church %o the Andrew Leeper Memorial Parish
Hall of 1912 and the more racent, metal sided kitchen.! These two rooms are positioned
perpendicularly to the church and mark the eastern boundary of the property.

2
n

Hardly common to English fSothic antecedenis, frame construction was freguently us
small rural American parish churches such as Grace Episcopal because it was often
more readily avaiiable and cheaper than the traditicnally employed stone. At G
Episcopal, the expense of frame construction was aven further reducad by the us
pre-cut boards and prefabricated parts. Althougn board and batten construction proved
to be one of the cheapest and most stylistically appropriate wall] treatments, weather-
boarding was used instead for most of the Grace LZpiscopal complex. While corner boards
at the nave and arched nave windows glazed with art glass panels held in place by

plate tracery contribute vertical counterpoints to the weatherboarding, battens were
paired and used horizontally at the level of the facade's rose window as decorative
(rather than moisture-proofingldevices to emphasize ithe rhythm of the siding. The
dentate cornice, the chevron moidings that asdge the tympanum and ratters and the
incised biocks that sheathe the vergeboards and form the voissoirs of the entrance

arch and the capping arch of the rose window provide embossed and intaglio motifs

which typify Victorian detailing. These subtly patterned wall surfaces are drawn
upward in a characteristically Gothic fashion by the swzep of the steenly pitched,
green asphalt clad vestibule, nave and bell cote roofs .2

Inside, above a dark-stained dado, diagonally-placed walnut paneling, echoes the
steep inclines of the gadble roof at the rear wall, whiles cpposite, at the eastern
nave and chancel walls, the converging panals dip downward directing attention to
the altar. Walnut and damar-varnished white pine boards dress the longitudinal

nave wails and the ceiling slopas in herringbone patterns which cscillate between
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the dado and wali plates below and the wall piates and roof ridge above. Mot only
are the ribbed, ceilinc slopes more in keeping with the interior docogatwva program

than the original light blue plastered slop but they

-

es they concezaled in 13
effectively display the kwgniy decorative English-inspired braced c011ar roof via

color contrasts in the same material.
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opal liturgical
and pane11ng
nt nlaced to

Carved biack walnut furnisnings are arranged according
prﬂscrapu ons against ine rich, 1 near packdrep craate
The titurgical hierarchy DCg1ns the west witn the 1
one side of the main entrance to symbo]ize baptism as
and follows the rhythm of the art glass windows and trusses through the dark nave.

The choir is elevated and removed from the nave by a low chancel rail fo signify its
greater liturgical importance, and in turn, the sanctuary with its carved altar (originally
backed by a retable)” znd stained glass lancet triplet is elevated and set off from the
choir by a low rail and chancel arch to signify iis even creater liturgical Importance.
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rRemarkably, the church has been 1'tt1e—change
builder named Dasher who censtructad Trinity

d the 1870's and 1880's. In 1878, a
Utica, instailed the ribbed pine cm11ing and
n

since

iscopal Church (1871-1872) in nearby

¢ black walnut pitaster sirips which
punctuate thz nave and a‘'so faced the window 'ambs and the chanczl arch and its
supnorting pilasters with oilad walnut. The northern cheir wall was removed in 1830,
and a shallow transept-like arm was constructed in its place to -accogodate the ten
rank, tracker system pipe organ which continues in weekly use todav.® Somewhat §11-
fated struciuraliy dur1rg this pericd, the church was shored up atter a wind storg
cleaved the sanctuary Trom the nave in 1871/ the foundation was rebuilt in 1877,

and the nave was braced with iron rods after being wezkened by a cyclone_ in 1880.9
Unspecified chancal alterations amounting to $5,000.00 were made in 191210 znd it
was parhaps at this time that the chancel paintings wers obscursad. More recently,
the retabie wes removed and the mechanical systems were updated, including the refitting
of the original cas chandeliers for electricity, the 1nsba11atwon of centrzl_heating
and air cond1h1or1ng1— and the raplacement of the original intericr chimney.

A few modifications were made to the foyer - a small, dark paneled room - and the 1812
parish nall a panelad, high-ceilinged room divided by two rows of nillars and containing
a non-original stage and recifor's office tothe north. The adjoining kitchen, nowever,
nas been medernizad througnout,

FOOTNOTES
1. Photographic documentation reveals that the kitchen replaced an earlizr pent-roofed

es
frame addition which was perhaps the 1801 cheir room mentionad by C.B.F. van Alstyne
Adelles in A Documentary History of tne Episcopal Church in Western Missouri.

John Albury Bryan, comp. and ed., Missouri's Coniribution to American Architecture
(St. Louis: S%. Louis Architectural Club, 1928}, b. 80.

C.B.F. van Alstyne Welles, A Documenzary History of the Episcopal Church in Western
Missouri (Cn1cago. The Cofmunity FPrass, 1964,
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2. Although Welles reports that th
president of the Kansas City So
installed.

e cnurch received a bell from W.X. Devamus,
uthern Rallroad, 1t is not known if it was aver

Welles, p. 222.

3. Edward P. Milbank, Draft of this Mational Register nomination of the Grace Lpiscopal
Church Complex, Division of Parks and Historic Pressrvation, Depariment of Natural
Resources, Jefferson City, Missouri.

4, Ibid.

5. A.J. Roof, Past and Present o7 Livinesten County, Missouri, 2 vols. (Chicago:

S.d. C]arke Publisning Company, 1913), 1: Unnumoered plate.

6. Milbank.

7. Welles, n. 62.
8. Ibid., o. 77.
9. Ibid., p. 81.
10. Rocf, p. 199.
11. Milhank.

12, Ibid.

13. Zryan, p. 80.
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Sicrificance

w Sy au t1 s i 2 Tl
Period Areas of Significance—Ch=ack and justify below
—_prehisteric  ____ archeolegy-prenistoric  ___ community planning ___ landscape architecture_X_ religion
___14n0-1499 ____ archzology-historic —_ conservation —— law — . scienca
— 1300-1389 ____ agriculture - acohomics — literature — . scuipture
—_1800-18585 _X_ architacture ___education — military — sccial/
e 17061782 L art ____ engineering e music humanilarian
_%__1300-15%9 ____ commeares — .. exploraticn setilement ___ philosophy —— theater
. 18C0~ — communications — industry ___ pelities'covernment . transporiation

—.. invention i S — other {specify)

Specific dates 1867-1259

Builder Architect L] Bea,v,de? St. LQQ‘IS,AY‘CH'E:QEC
O, 8] 0. 1

Statement of Significance {in one paragraph}

The Grace Episcopal Church Comp; X, 421
significant because it is one of the ear
the Livingston County area. As a prafab
atter p]ans by St. Louis architect J. Be
th

rzai, Chillicothe, Missouri, is
organizad Episcopal parishes in
d building assembled in 1867~69
, the anrch derives further importance

2 -g e T
-y

from the architect's able blending of the Lec}n010gica1 advances of the 1840's
and 1850's with architectural design. In additicn, it is imporiant as a fine,
remar<ably intact exampliz of small, wooaen parish ch“rches modaTad after carly
Engtish Gothic buildings.

The Grace Mission_was organized by Deacon Loop to serve the Livingston County
vicinity in 1852, Fo]]owiﬂg early services in Platter Hall and a hiatus during
the Civil War, the congregation set about the tgsk of building a permanent home

on Zlm Stresi, not Tar from +nb center of town,

In 1857, St. Louis builder Jacch H. Flower began assembling fabpricated parts

]

according to specifications by another St. Louisan, J. Beattie.?d

New York-born Beattie had only rocoanj estzbiishec himself as an architect in

St. Louis when he dasigned Grace Epis copal Church. His work ranges from residential,

ecciesiastical, and commercial construction o m n1c1pa] structures as Beattie

served a five year stint as the City's Commissioner of Pubiic Buildings sometime

befora 1835. It seams Tikely that his bast known zcclesiastical work in St. Louis --
esigns for Si. George’s {Episcopal) and construcition supﬂranu:naeﬁ for Leopold

Eidiitz's Christ Church Cathadrai (Epfscoga?) of 1859-67 -- figured into his

seiection for the Chillicothe commission. oo

1sh was eble to afford the services of a bonatide architect
wWith experience in Episcopal church design by economiz1ﬁg in other arsas through
the use of prefabricated parts, frame construction, a minimum of ornament and

other similar cost trimming features. Prefabricated frame construction proved a
suitable expression for honestly statad materials and construction and design
methods as stiipulated by Victorian and Gothic revival architectural thaories.
(Beattie, however, carriad this aesthetic of truthfully presented materials only

sg far, choosing instzad 1o paint the exisrior.) Further, Beatiia's design
illustrates that prefabrication was not an obstacle to designing a solid copy

of English parish churches, but rather a fit vehicle for simplified Gothic revival
forms,

Plausibly, %h= modest par
5

As evidenced by iLfs thorcughgoing borrowing from Znglish Gothic parish cnurches,
Grace Zpiscopal Church exsmplifies the strepg associations betwsen the American

Episcopal Churcn and the Church of Frgland.” As such, Grace Episcopal is a near-
intact example of the small parish church typs which had gained considzrable
popuiarity in rural areas and small towns in the inited States by the 1880's.
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During its 110 year history, the church has served as a focus of religious activity
for Episcopaiians and as a focus of social activity for the Chillicothe community.
From its early years when nD Pnurfﬂ hosted town functions, organ recitals and
lTectures and noused the town' firsn gymrasium in the tiny, nresent-day foyer
to recent yesars when *bm FP"??1t1 wers modernized and improved with the
remode?1ng of the parish hall and the kitchen, the cnurch has been an imporiant,
integral pari of Ch171‘chhe community 1ife
FOGTNOTES
1. Welles, p. 43.
2. Milbank.
3. Ihid.
4. St. Louis Un To Date (St. Louis Consclidatad Printing Co., 1895), p. 183.
5. Phoebe B. Stanton, The Gothic Revival and American Church Architscture
(Baltimo Johns Hopkins Prass, 1963), n. 4,
6. Everard ¥. Upjohn, Richard Usjehn, Architazct and Churchman (Mew York: Columbia
University Prass, 1939), n. 120
7. Miibank.
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List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state : code county code

state _ cade county : code

i1. Form Prepared By

hame/title 1 Edward_P. Milbank, Senior Warden

organlzation Grace Fpiscopal Church date January 23, 1979
street&number p 0. RBox 367.... ¢ ... .. ..... .. telephone .  816/646-0]183

city or town Chillicothe state - :Missouri-- 6460]

12. _State Historic Preservation Offlcer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property wlthln the state is:

—_ national — state % local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 {Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

Director, Department of Natural Resources and
: “ e cy..o Hictoric Preservahnn Ofﬁcer

&For HCRS use only o T
| hereby certifv that this Pfﬂpeny is included in the Natmnal Reglster

;r.
XA

& Keeper of the Natlonal Register n

Attest : i _ .
t_‘Chief of Registration -~ . ' - S o ]

GPO 938 635
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